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The Harburg Jewish Cemetery

In a letter of protection from 1671, the Earls of Oettingen allocated this 
piece of land on the Hühnerberg, then far outside the town limits, to 
the Harburg Jews for their cemetery. For this half-acre, or about 2000 m 2, 
of farmland the Jewish families had to pay 75 guilders in two installments. 
The Harburg “Guter Ort” (Good Place) as Jews in German-speaking areas 
called their cemeteries, served as central cemetery for the Jewish commu-
nities in Harburg, Ederheim as well as Mönchsdeggingen until a Jewish 
cemetery was established there in 1830. In 1833, the Jewish community 
expanded the cemetery to its present size of 4,380 m 2.

The Harburg Jewish cemetery is one of the largest in the Swabian part of 
Bavaria. Presumably there were around 500 gravestones and 150 wooden 
grave markers here. Today only around 250 gravestones are preserved, 
the oldest dating back to around 1800.

In 1744, soldiers passing through the area destroyed many of the wooden 
grave markers and the wooden fence around the cemetery. As a result 
the Jewish community had a wall built around it. A year later a mortuary 
(Hebrew: Tahara) was erected. During the Napoleonic Wars soldiers once 
again vandalized the cemetery. It was repeatedly desecrated also during 
the Nazi era. Already in April of 1937 33 gravestones were knocked over. 
Even after the war, in 1957, the cemetery was again defi led.

The last Harburg Jew laid to rest here was town councilor and 
 haberdasher Julius Nebel (1857 – 1938).

According to Jewish tradition, graves are not decorated with fl owers. 
The deceased are buried in single graves arranged in the order of their 
death. Double and family plots are the exception.

Der jüdische Friedhof von Harburg

In einem Schutzbrief von 1671 wiesen die Grafen von Oettingen 
den Juden in Harburg diesen Platz auf dem Hühnerberg, damals 
weit außerhalb des Orts, zur Anlegung ihres Friedhofs zu. Die 
jüdischen Familien mussten 75 Gulden in zwei Raten für den 
halben Morgen Ackerland, das sind knapp 2.000 m 2, zahlen. 
Der Harburger „Gute Ort“, wie die Juden im deutschen Sprach-
raum ihren Friedhof nannten, diente als Verbandsfriedhof für 
die jüdischen Gemeinden von Harburg, Ederheim sowie Mönchs-
deggingen, bis dort 1830 ein jüdischer Friedhof angelegt wurde. 
1833 ließ die jüdische Gemeinde den Friedhof auf seine heutige 
Fläche von 4.380 m 2 erweitern.

Der jüdische Friedhof von Harburg zählt zu den größten in Baye-
risch-Schwaben. Vermutlich befanden sich hier etwa 500 Grab-
steine und 150 Holzgrabtafeln. Heute sind noch etwa 250 Grab-
steine erhalten. Der älteste erhaltene Grabstein stammt aus der 
Zeit um 1800.

1744 zerstörten durchziehende Soldaten viele Holzgrabtafeln und 
die damals hölzerne Umzäunung des Friedhofs. Daraufhin ließ 
die jüdische Gemeinde den Friedhof ummauern. Ein Jahr später 
wurde das Reinigungshaus (hebr. Tahara) erbaut. Während der 
Na poleonischen Kriege beschädigten Soldaten den Friedhof er-
neut. In der NS-Zeit kam es mehrfach zu Schändungen. Bereits 
im  April 1937 wurden 33 Grabsteine umgeworfen. Auch nach dem 
Krieg, 1957, wurde der Friedhof geschändet.

Als letzter Harburger Jude fand 1938 der Stadtrat und Kurzwaren-
händler Julius Nebel (1857 – 1938) hier seine letzte Ruhestätte. 
Nach jüdischer Tradition werden die Gräber nicht mit Blumen 
 geschmückt. Die Einzelgräber sind in der Reihenfolge des Todes-
datums angelegt. Doppel- und Familiengräber bilden die Ausnahme.

Harburg, 2010

Der jüdische Friedhof Harburg 
befi ndet sich im Eigentum des 
Landesverbands der Israelitischen 
Kultusgemeinden in Bayern. Im 
Auftrag der Stadt Harburg wird 
er von der Familie Thum gepfl egt, 
schon in der dritten Generation. 
Er kann nach Anmeldung bei 
der Stadt Harburg (Schloßstr. 1, 
Tel. 09080 - 96 99 12) oder bei Herrn 
Friedrich Thum (Tel. 09080 - 55 9) 
besichtigt werden.

Männer werden gebeten, eine 
Kopfbedeckung zu tragen. Aus 
religiösen Gründen ist die Besich-
tigung des Friedhofs am Samstag 
(Schabbat) und an jüdischen Feier-
tagen nicht möglich.

The Harburg Jewish cemetery is 
owned by the Landesverband der 
Israelitischen Kultusgemeinden in 
Bayern and is maintained in the 
third generation by the Thum family 
as commissioned by the Town of 
Harburg. It can be viewed by appoint-
ment. Please contact the Town 
Administration offi ces at Schloss-
strasse 1, tel. +49 (0) 9080 - 96 99 12 
or Mr. Friedrich Thum, 
tel. +49 (0) 9080 - 55 9.

Men are kindly requested to cover 
their heads when visiting the 
cemetery. For religious reasons it is 
not possible to enter the cemetery 
on Saturdays (Sabbath) and Jewish 
holidays.
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